
Children's Scrutiny Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Children's Scrutiny Panel to be held as 
follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Wednesday, 13 March 2019

TIME: 2.00 pm

VENUE: Committee Room 4, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Minutes of the previous meeting - 13th February 2019 (Pages 1 - 4)

3  Budget Monitoring report (Pages 5 - 12)

4  Draft Spotlight Review for Support Offer to Young People 

5  School Performance Data 

6  Any Other business 

7  Date, time and business for next meeting 

Wednesday 10th April at 1.30pm for members of the panel – business 
to be considered- Young People’s General Health -

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2811
Helen.Oldland- Senior Democratic Services 
Advisor

E-Mail: helen.oldland@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1

CHILDREN'S SCRUTINY PANEL

Date of meeting 13th February 2019

Meeting commenced: 2.00pm
Meeting ended: 3.50pm

PRESENT: Councillor Adrian Brocklehurst in the Chair

Councillors:, Jillian Collinson, Laura Edwards, Charlie McIntyre 
Michelle Barnes, Michael Pevitt, Neil Reynolds, Joan Walsh and Ari 
Leitner

Co-Opted Members - Seamus Martin (Parent Governor rep), Keith 
Archer (Church of England rep), Claire Harrison (Roman Catholic 
Rep), Judith Elderkin (Teachers rep) and Jacqui Morrissey (Foster 
Parent rep).

OFFICER(S): Deborah Blackburn– Assistant Director – Public Health, Nursing and 
Wellbeing. 
Sarah Scanlan – Head of Participation 
Helen Oldland – Senior Democratic Services Officer

1  INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Peter Dobbs and 
Stephen Hesling. 

2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED: THAT the minutes of the meeting held on the 12th December 2018
were agreed as a true and correct record. 

3.         YOUNG PEOPLE ACHIEVING AND PROGRESSING IN EDUCATION AND WORK

Sarah Scanlan – Head of Participation and Deborah Blackburn – Assistant Director 
– Public Health, Nursing and Wellbeing provided the panel with a detailed and 
informative presentation regarding the progress of young people which included  
the school activity survey, those young people not in education, training or 
employment (NEETs), the NEET Reduction Strategy and the opportunities being 
provided. 

The key points of the presentation covered the following;-

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



2

 Non – raising participation age destination data from schools will fluctuate 
year on year and figures are a “snapshot in time”

 Correlation between ward/neighbourhood areas of deprivation and NEETs
 Rising numbers of pupils in Elective Home Education (EHE)
 Loss of the cultural and alternative/vocational curriculum to focus on the 

academic subjects and Progress 8 against which schools are measured
 Ongoing work on transition including into further education from high school 

and expanding opportunities 
 Learning from best practice
 Resource issues
 Hidden NEET research project
 Early help and quality interventions 
 Success stories – Keepmoat Homes, Build Salford, Salford Futures, 

supported internships, connexions programme of support 

The members of the panel raised questions in regard to those young people who 
are not prepared to engage with any services and who are therefore not showing in 
the data, the rising numbers of those parents who are choosing Elective Home 
Education (EHE) and the limited resources available across the piece. 

The Assistant Director re-assured panel members that the service group continue 
to investigate the wider agenda around EHE, Special Educational Needs and 
Disabilities and mental health in order that schools are inclusive. Support is 
provided to pupils in EHE via the Connexions services contract to move them from 
this into further education or work placements. 

Discussion took place as to the many factors which can influence NEET figures 
including the focus of schools on academic progress, which can cause some pupils 
to disengage from education early, low self confidence or missing social skills 
which deter young people from continuing into a further education setting, the lack 
of aspiration or successful role models and the links into poverty and deprivation. 
 
Members of the panel raised the following points;- Fees for online learning 
programmes are significant if paid for by an individual so could the local authority 
explore setting up an entity which allows EHE students to benefit from lower fees 
and also exam fees? How are the pupils from independent schools included in this 
data and similarly tracked? Do we get to know about young people entering the 
city after their year 11 schooling so that we can track these individuals also?
The officers indicated that they would explore the first suggestion in regard to 
exam and online programme fees, they confirmed that neighbouring authorities 
provide data on young people leaving their area and entering another and that they 
would discuss further the issue of pupils in independent schools in order that they 
can also be included in these figures for the future. 

The Assistant Director provided further assurance during the discussions that the 
service group continue to explore ways in which to join up services and that this 
very point was raised during the recent Ofsted annual conversation. 

Page 2



3

In addition the transition work between schools and Salford City College is working 
well, schools and academies in the city engage positively and they share the same 
desire to improve on the data and outcomes but there is limited capacity for this 
work. Some schools do better than others at being creative and innovative and of 
course good practice is shared. Reference was made to the Fuelling Ambitions 
Creatively Together (FACT) project which supported pupils from five high schools 
to take a different way of approaching learning and ‘learn for themselves.’
It was noted that Salford is aware of where all their NEETs are whereas this is not 
necessarily the case across other local authorities. 

The panel requested a further breakdown of the data sets including statistics for 
those who are job seeking, providing care etc and it was indicated that this could 
be provided. 

The Head of Participation reported that there is a wealth of provision in the city but 
this needs co-ordinating and managing. There are many success stories which 
have been delivered with stakeholders and partners coming together and we have 
good models that we would like to scale up across the city, however resources 
within the Skills & Work team are particularly limited due to imminent budget 
decisions which may affect the ability to influence, shape and facilitate this work.

The officers were thanked for the very interesting presentation which had sparked 
a lengthy discussion for the panel with valuable points having been raised. 

RESOLVED: THAT the presentation and information provided be noted. 

4.          ANY OTHER BUSINESS

The panel received a verbal update in regard to the recent outbreak of measles in 
one area of the City and the mitigating actions, including targeted campaigns, 
vaccinations and the provision of additional clinics, which had been taken 
alongside Public Health England to contain the spread of infection. 

5.    DATE, TIME AND BUSINESS FOR NEXT MEETING

   Wednesday 13th March 2019 at 1.30pm for panel members. 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



PART 1
(OPEN TO THE PUBLIC)

ITEM NO. 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC FINANCE MANAGER
ON BEHALF OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

TO CHILDREN’S SCRUTINY PANEL 
ON 

13th MARCH 2019

TITLE:  REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2018/19, CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2018/19

RECOMMENDATIONS:
 
It is recommended that Children’s Scrutiny Panel:-

 Consider the current position and forecast year-end position for the service group’s revenue 
budget and Dedicated Schools Grant budget

 Consider the progress made towards achieving the agreed cost reductions
 Review the current position regarding the service group’s 2018/19 capital programme.
 Request further information as necessary to help to ensure good governance.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
 

(a) Revenue Budget

The service group’s budget for 2018/19 is £85.252m and the forecast expenditure for the year is 
£91.003m. Consequently, there is a forecast adverse variation of £5.751m for the financial year. 

(b) Savings

The budget for Children’s Services has not been reduced for savings in 2018-19. Due to the significant 
budget pressures resulting from increased demographic growth and need for services in the city, the 
council has chosen to reinvest £4.5m in the base budget for Children’s Services for the new financial 
year. Children’s Services are continuing to progress plans for a reduction in budget pressures. 

(c) Dedicated Schools Grant

The DSG allocation for central services in 2018/19 is £42.520m and the forecast expenditure for the 
year is £48.246m, a forecast adverse variation of £5.726m. 

(d) Capital Programme

The service group programme for 2018/19 is currently £6.967m. The phasing of expenditure means that 
spend totalling £2.661m has been incurred for the period April to December 2018. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 SAP general ledger and BI reports
 Various documents held on the accountancy team

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2

CONTACT OFFICERS: Chris Mee, tel. 0161 778 0434, chris.mee@salford.gov.uk, Dave Cope 0161 778 
0213 dave.cope@salford.gov.uk 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Key risks to budgetary control and savings are identified in this report.

SOURCE OF FUNDING: Sections in this report consider the Revenue Budget and Capital Programme

LEGAL ADVICE OBTAINED: Not applicable

FINANCIAL ADVICE OBTAINED:
This report concerns key aspects of the Council’s revenue finances and has been produced by the 
Finance Division.

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): None specifically 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 2018/19 Revenue Budget, 2018/19 Capital Programme

Page 6

mailto:chris.mee@salford.gov.uk
mailto:dave.cope@salford.gov.uk


3

1 Introduction

1.1 This report is set out in four main sections. 

 Section 2 sets out the current position of the revenue budget and forecasts the year end position, 
highlighting any risks/sensitivities.

 Section 3 sets out the current position of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) and forecasts the year 
end position, highlighting any risks/sensitivities.

 Section 4 provides an update on savings requirement

 Section 5 provides an update of the Capital Programme.

2 Revenue budget

2.1 The current position and year end forecast for the Revenue Budget is set out in Table A below. 
Agreed savings (discussed in section 4) have been built into the budget figures. Expenditure data 
reflects salaries, wages and other expenditure up to 31st December 2018.

2.2 At this stage of the financial year it is not possible to project income and expenditure with absolute 
certainty. There is therefore a risk of unforeseen variations to the forecast outturn.

2.3 Table A: Revenue budget to 31 December 2018

Division of 
service

Profiled 
budget 
to date

Expend 
to date Variance Annual 

budget
Forecast 
outturn 
expend

Forecast 
variance

Risk 
assessment

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Leadership & 
Safeguarding 1,475 1,446 29 2,094 2,071 23 ● (GREEN)

Specialist 
Services 24,899 29,278 (4,379) 34,183 39,777 (5,594) ● (RED)

SEN, Access & 
Inclusion 21,369 21,156 213 27,620 27,875 (255) ● (AMBER)

Education & 
Helping Families (2,628) (2,679) 51 21,355 21,280 75 ● (GREEN) 

Total 45,115 49,201 (4,086) 85,252 91,003 (5,751) ● (RED)

2.4 It is forecast that the Children’s Services revenue budget will overspend by £5.751m. This position is 
due to continued significant pressures within the Family Placement services (£5.9m) and in particular 
on Outside Placements including secure welfare provision which is currently costing £12k per week.

The service group continues to work to identify cost savings across the service group as a whole to 
help to mitigate the current projected adverse variance including

Page 7



4

 All placements are being actively reviewed whilst still working to meet the needs of young people. . 
It is envisaged that end dates for these placements will be determined soon in accordance with the 
needs of young people, which will reduce the outside placement overspend.  
 

 Full review of intervention for those likely to come into care with a view to adopting the No-Wrong 
Door approach developed by North Yorkshire using innovation resource from the GM children’s 
work

 A successful recruitment drive within the Child Protection team has led to the appointment of five 
qualified social workers to reduce agency spend further.

 Currently showing a pressure of £0.4m on the cost of SEN transport. Strategic work to enable more 
children with EHC plans to be educated in Salford is resulting in a reduction of the pressure in this 
area but it remains a pressure and is being robustly managed. 

 

3 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG)

3.1 The year-end forecast for centrally held Dedicated Schools Grant budgets is set out in Table B 
below.  

 
3.2 At this stage of the financial year it is not possible to project income and expenditure with absolute 

certainty. There is therefore a risk of unforeseen variations to the forecast outturn.

3.3 Table B: DSG dedicated schools grant forecast

DSG 
funding 
block

2018/19 
Allocation

Total 
2018/19 
Budget

Forecast 
outturn 
expend

Forecast 
variance Risk 

Forecast 
balance 

31st Mar 19
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

High needs 22,561 22,561 27,406 (4,845) ● (RED) (9,571)
Early years 15,258 15,258 16,049 (791) ● (RED) 322
Schools 4,702 4,702 4,791 (90) ● (GREEN) (627)

Total 42,520 42,520 48,246 (5,726) ● (GREEN) (9,876)

It is forecast that in-year expenditure will be over budget by £5.726m by year end. This is due in the main to 
a forecast overspend on the High Needs block of £4.8m and £0.8m on Early Years. 

The pressure on the High Needs block budget is as a result of:-

 Recurrent and increasing costs for children and young people in out of City high cost placements 
(July2017-  135 placements at average cost of £31,000 each – accounts for over £4m per annum)

Page 8



5

 Increase in cost of specialist provision to meet the increasing complexity of needs (some providers 
reference the rise in national minimum wage and living wage as affecting fees). 

 Children and Families Act has introduced statutory duties for ages 19-25 so increasing the demand. 
Currently 120 students in mainstream & specialist colleges. This is a rise from 89 in 2016. No  new 
funding was made available when statutory duties were increased for this age group

 Improving identification of SEN especially in early years and post 18 leading to increased demand
 Increasing complexity of need especially around social emotional and mental health related needs 

means Element 3 top up funding is at the higher banding levels (£12,500 per pupil) Increase circa 
20% compared to 15/16

 Notional protection  has increased by 66% in 16/17 when compared to the previous year as this 
additional funding was added to schools budgets in response to unanticipated changes to IDACI 
measures which negatively impacted on school budgets as this is a key indicator in our Salford 
schools formula

 Increase in rise for EHC assessments as schools and settings evidence that needs can’t be met 
from within notional SEN budgets (247 EHC Plans finalised Jan to Aug 2017 compared to 74 in 
same period 2016). 

 Growth in numbers of places funded  at enhanced resource provisions 
 Despite investment in mainstream and special schools there is yet to be a reduction in demand for 

high cost placements in the independent sector 
 switching core funding and early years block spend into this budget

The projected overspend on the High Need block is a continuation of the pressures experienced in the 
previous year with a deficit balance having been carried forward from 17/18 of £4.7m. The total projected 
deficit on the High Need block at the end of 18/19 therefore being £9.6m.

The pressure on the Early Years block budget is as a result of:-

 Implementation of the National Funding formula in Early Years, which restricts the level of 3 and 4 
year old grant allocation which can be retained by the council for central expenditure to 5%.

 Previous budget decisions to switch budget to Early Years DSG 

In order to address this pressure and to prioritise available funding on early intervention and prevention, it 
was agreed by cabinet to commence a 90 day consultation on a more cost effective way to deliver the 
Local Authority (LA) nurseries. The council has committed to supporting the LA nurseries provision for the 
academic year 2018/19 (ie up to September 2019), pending the outcome of this consultation and the 
identification of a sustainable / affordable solution within the funding available. A 30 day public consultation 
began on the 7th September to seek a school/education based solution to maximise the LA Day nursery 
provision in the city. This consultation closed on the 18th October and the council has subsequently now 
gone out to competition for the delivery of the five LA Nurseries, with tenders being submitted by bidders on 
the 5th February.

4 2018/19 Savings

4.1 The budget for Children’s Services has not been reduced for savings in 2018-19. Due to the significant 
budget pressures resulting from increased demographic growth and need for services in the city, the 
council has chosen to reinvest £4.5m in the base budget for Children’s Services for the new financial 
year. Children’s Services remain committed to living within budget and are continuing to progress plans 
for a reduction in budget pressures.

Page 9



6

5 Capital 

5.1 Introduction
This report advises Children’s Scrutiny Panel of recent developments regarding the capital programme.
  

5.2 Expenditure to Date
Children’s Scrutiny Panel is asked to note the following summary of actual expenditure against 
expected expenditure as at the end of December 2018.

Table 1 – Actual Spend Against Profile
High Level Summary Current 

Programme
Expected 
spend to 
date

Actual spend 
to date

Variance

£m £m £m £m
Basic Need 3.447          1.481          1.481          -             
Capital Maintenance 3.520          1.180          1.180          -             
Total 6.967          2.661          2.661          -             

5.3    2018/19 Capital Programme Adjustments

Table 2 – Programme
High Level Summary Original Current Variation Comments

£m £m £m £m
Basic Need 3.447 3.447 -
Capital Maintenance 3.520 3.520 -
Total 6.967 6.967 -

Table 3 – Resources
High Level Summary Last month Current Variation Comments

£m £m £m £m
Unsupported borrowing - self financing - - -
Unsupported borrowing - general support - - -
Subtotal - Internal resources - - -
Grants 6.967 6.967 -
Other contributions - - -
Subtotal - External resources 6.967 6.967 -
Total resources 6.967 6.967 -

5.4 Issues/Risks
At this stage of the year there are no issues / risks to report. The capital programme will continue to 
be closely monitored to identify any budget pressures at an early stage.

Page 10



7

6 Recommendations

It is recommended that Children’s Scrutiny Panel:-

 Consider the current position and forecast year-end position for the service group’s revenue 
budget and Dedicated Schools Grant budget

 Review the current position regarding the service group’s 2018/19 capital programme.
 Request further information as necessary to help to ensure good governance.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting - 13th February 2019
	3 Budget Monitoring report

